
 

 

Governance Committee 
 
Monday 20 September 2021 at 10.00 am 

 
Town Hall, Sheffield, S1 2HH 

 
The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Membership 
  

Councillors Julie Grocutt (Chair), Penny Baker (Deputy Chair), Sue Alston, 
Dawn Dale, Christine Gilligan, Mark Jones, Mary Lea, Mike Levery, 
Mohammed Mahroof, Sioned-Mair Richards and Kaltum Rivers 
 

  

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING 

 
The Governance Committee is leading on work to transition to a committee system 
of governance from May 2022. It is a politically proportionate Committee which will 
be tasked with oversight of the transitional work and will approve the 
recommendations to be made to Full Council. 

 
The Committee will be outward facing. The Council will not be working in isolation on 
this project but will seek input from outside the organisation, ensuring citizens are 
engaged and are provided with opportunities to help shape this programme of work 
The Council will also be engaging the professional support of agencies such as the 
Local Government Association, the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny and 
Monitoring Officers from other local authorities which have recently transitioned or 
are about to transition to a Committee system. This will ensure the Council is 
supported through this period and learns from best practice to ensure that the 
system implemented in Sheffield responds to the needs of our City. 
 
A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council’s website at 
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=632&MId=8053. You 
may not be allowed to see some reports because they contain confidential 
information. These items are usually marked * on the agenda. 
 
Attending Meetings 
 
Meetings of the Committee are open to the public. 
  
There is an opportunity for members of the public to ask questions and submit 
petitions under the agenda item 'Public Questions and Petitions'.  
 
As we are still operating under Social Distancing Rules, if you wish to ask a question 
or present a petition at the meeting, you must submit the question/petition in writing 
at least 2 clear days in advance of the date of the meeting, by email to the following 
address: committee@sheffield.gov.uk.This is necessary to facilitate the management 
of attendance at the meeting and to maintain social distancing.  
 
Council meetings are normally open to the public but sometimes the Council may 
have to discuss an item in private. If this happens, you will be asked to leave. Any 
private items are normally left until last. 
  
Due to health and safety restrictions in place to ensure current social distancing rules 
in our meeting rooms, we are unable to guarantee entrance to observers, as priority 
will be given to registered speakers. To observe the meeting as a member of the 
public, please click on the ‘view the webcast’ link provided on the meeting page of 
the website. 
 
Please note that meetings will be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
council’s website. See the Council’s Webcasting Notice for more details. 
 
Further information is available on submitting petitions. 

mailto:committee@sheffield.gov.uk
http://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/documents/s39811/Webcasting%20Notice.pdf
http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/home/your-city-council/sign-start-petitions


 

 

 
Recording is allowed at Governance Committee meetings under the direction of the 
Chair of the meeting. The protocol on audio/visual recording and photography 
provides further information. 

http://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/documents/s29172/SCCProtocolonAVRecordingPhotographyRevisedDecember2017.docx.pdf


 

 

 

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA 
20 SEPTEMBER 2021 

 
Order of Business 

 
1.   Welcome and Housekeeping Arrangements 

 
2.   Apologies for Absence 

 
3.   Exclusion of Public and Press 
 To identify items where resolutions may be moved to exclude the press 

and public. 
 

4.   Declarations of Interest 
 Members to declare any interests they have in the business to be 

considered at the meeting. 
 

5.   Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 To approve the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 7 July 

2021. 
 

6.   Public Questions and Petitions 
 To receive any questions or petitions from members of the public. 

 
7.   Governance Committee Terms of Reference 
 Report of the Director of Legal and Governance. 

 
8.   Programme Update 
 Presentation by the Lead Business Change Manager. 

 
9.   Design Principles 
 Report of the Director of Legal and Governance. 

 
10.   Transitional Committees Briefing 
 Report of the Director of Legal and Governance. 

 
11.   Date of Next Meeting 
 The next meeting of the Committee will be held on Wednesday 27th 

October 2021 in the Town Hall. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 

 
If you are present at a meeting of the Council, of its executive or any committee of 
the executive, or of any committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or joint sub-
committee of the authority, and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) 
relating to any business that will be considered at the meeting, you must not:  
 

 participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become 
aware of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the meeting, participate 
further in any discussion of the business, or  

 participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.  

These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a 
member of the public. 

You must: 
 

 leave the room (in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct) 

 make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any DPI at any 
meeting at which you are present at which an item of business which affects or 
relates to the subject matter of that interest is under consideration, at or before 
the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes 
apparent. 

 declare it to the meeting and notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer within 28 
days, if the DPI is not already registered. 

 
If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable 
pecuniary interests under the new national rules. You have a pecuniary interest if 
you, or your spouse or civil partner, have a pecuniary interest.  
 

 Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain, 
which you, or your spouse or civil partner undertakes. 
 

 Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from your 
council or authority) made or provided within the relevant period* in respect of 
any expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards 
your election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a 
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  
 
*The relevant period is the 12 months ending on the day when you tell the 
Monitoring Officer about your disclosable pecuniary interests. 

 

 Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your civil partner (or 
a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial 
interest) and your council or authority –  
 
- under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 

executed; and  
- which has not been fully discharged. 



 

 

 

 Any beneficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, 
have and which is within the area of your council or authority. 

 

 Any licence (alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse or your civil 
partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council or authority for a month 
or longer. 
 

 Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 

- the landlord is your council or authority; and  
- the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a 

beneficial interest. 
 

 Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner has in 
securities of a body where -  

 

(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of 
your council or authority; and  
 

(b) either - 
- the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 

hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or  
- if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 

nominal value of the shares of any one class in which you, or your spouse 
or your civil partner, has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of 
the total issued share capital of that class. 

If you attend a meeting at which any item of business is to be considered and you 
are aware that you have a personal interest in the matter which does not amount to 
a DPI, you must make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest 
at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest 
becomes apparent. You should leave the room if your continued presence is 
incompatible with the 7 Principles of Public Life (selflessness; integrity; objectivity; 
accountability; openness; honesty; and leadership).  

You have a personal interest where – 

 a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting 
the well-being or financial standing (including interests in land and easements 
over land) of you or a member of your family or a person or an organisation with 
whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect the 
majority of the Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward or 
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the Authority’s 
administrative area, or 
 

 it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests that are defined as DPIs but 
are in respect of a member of your family (other than a partner) or a person with 
whom you have a close association. 

 
Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the 
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to 
you previously. 
 



 

 

You should identify any potential interest you may have relating to business to be 
considered at the meeting. This will help you and anyone that you ask for advice to 
fully consider all the circumstances before deciding what action you should take. 
 
In certain circumstances the Council may grant a dispensation to permit a Member 
to take part in the business of the Authority even if the member has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest relating to that business.  

To obtain a dispensation, you must write to the Monitoring Officer at least 48 hours 
before the meeting in question, explaining why a dispensation is sought and 
desirable, and specifying the period of time for which it is sought.  The Monitoring 
Officer may consult with the Independent Person or the Council’s Standards 
Committee in relation to a request for dispensation. 

Further advice can be obtained from Gillian Duckworth, Director of Legal and 
Governance on 0114 2734018 or email gillian.duckworth@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 
 

mailto:gillian.duckworth@sheffield.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



S H E F F I E L D    C I T Y     C O U N C I L 
 

 

Governance Committee 
 

Meeting held 7 July 2021 
 
PRESENT: Councillors Sue Alston, Penny Baker, Dawn Dale, Christine Gilligan, 

Julie Grocutt, Mark Jones, Mary Lea, Mike Levery, Mohammed Mahroof, 
Sioned-Mair Richards and Kaltum Rivers 
 

 
   

 
1.   
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

1.1 There were no apologies for absence received from members of the Committee. 
  
2.   
 

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR AND DEPUTY CHAIR 
 

2.1 RESOLVED: That Councillor Julie Grocutt be appointed as Chair and Councillor 
Penny Baker be appointed as Deputy Chair of the Committee for the Municipal 
Year 2021/22. 

  
3.   
 

DATES AND TIMES OF FUTURE MEETINGS 
 

3.1 RESOLVED That meetings of the Committee be held as and when required on 
dates and times to be determined by the Chair. 

  

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



 

 

 
 

 
Report of:   Director of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:    20th September 2021 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject:   Terms of Reference 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report:  Alexander Polak, Assistant Director of Governance  
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
 
The report provides details of the terms of reference for the Governance 
Committee. 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendations: 
 
That the terms of reference for the Governance Committee at item 3.1 be 
approved and that it be noted that these will then be added to the Constitution. 
_____________________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers:  None 
 

 
Category of Report: OPEN 
 
 

 
 
   

 
Governance 

 Committee Report 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 7



 

 

Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 
 

Financial Implications 
 

NO Cleared by: Kayleigh Inman 
 

Legal Implications 
 

NO Cleared by: Sarah Bennett 
 

Equality of Opportunity Implications 

NO Cleared by: James Henderson 
 

Tackling Health Inequalities Implications 
 

NO 
 

Human rights Implications 
 

NO: 
 

Environmental and Sustainability implications 
 

NO 
 

Economic impact 
 

NO 
 

Community safety implications 
 

NO 
 

Human resources implications 
 

NO 
 

Property implications 
 

NO 
 

Area(s) affected 
 

NONE 
 

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?    

NO 
 

Press release 
 

NO 
 

Page 12



 

 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF 
LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE 

Governance Committee 
20th September 2021 

  
  
 
 
1. Purpose of Report 
  
1.1 
 
1.2 

To consider and agree terms of reference for the Committee.  
 
To note and understand the remit of the Governance Committee. 

  
2. BACKGROUND  
  
2.1 
 
 
 
 
2.2 

On 16 June 2021 Sheffield City Council resolved to establish a Governance 
Committee as a politically proportionate member steering group to guide the transition 
to a committee system of governance and to set the parameters for stakeholder 
engagement.  
 
The Director of Legal and Governance was requested to update the constitution to 
include the Governance Committee’s terms of reference once agreed by the 
Committee itself. 
 

2.3 
 
 
 
2.4 

The Governance Committee was established with the Deputy Leader,. Councillor 
Julie Grocutt, who will lead this piece of work, as the Chair. The Shadow Deputy 
leader, Councillor Penny Baker, is Vice Chair.  
 
The Committee was to be made up of the Chairs of the Transitional Committees and 
Councillor Mary Lea as part of her coordinating role for Local Area Committee 
implementation. This membership constitutes a politically proportionate Committee 
which was to be tasked with oversight of the transitional work and approving the 
recommendations to be made to Full Council. This replaced the role provisionally 
agreed for the Overview and management Scrutiny Committee reported to an earlier 
meeting of Full Council. The Committee was designed to be outward facing.  
 

2.5 A report to the 7 July Council confirmed that Councillors Sue Alston, Dawn Dale, 
Christine Gilligan, Mark Jones, Mike Levery, Mohammed Mahroof, Sioned-Mair 
Richards and Kaltum Rivers had been appointed to the committee in accordance with 
the above. 
 

  

Page 13

https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/documents/b24137/Transition%20to%20a%20Committee%20System%20Wednesday%2016-Jun-2021%2014.00%20Council.pdf?T=9
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/documents/s45533/7th%20July%202021.pdf


 

 

3 
 
3.1 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
The following draft terms of reference are commended to the Committee: 
 

(a) To guide the Council’s transition to a committee system of governance and to 
set the parameters for stakeholder engagement. 
 

(b) To seek input from outside the organisation as it thinks fit, ensuring citizens are 
engaged and are provided with opportunities to help shape this programme of 
work. 
 

(c) To have oversight of the work carried out in the Transition to Committees 
programme. 

(d)  To review proposals for a modern committee structure and approve the 
recommendations to be made to Full Council. 
 

(e) To keep the Council’s constitutional arrangements under review and consider 
officers’ proposals for changes to the Constitution. 
 

(f) To make such recommendations to Full Council as it considers appropriate for 
ways in which the Constitution should be amended in order to achieve the 
purposes of a committee system of governance. 

 
4. Recommendation: 
  
4.1 That the terms of reference for the Governance Committee at item 3.1 be approved 

and that it be noted that these will then be added to the Constitution. 
  
  
 Gillian Duckworth 
 Director of Legal and Governance 

 

Page 14



 
 

 
Report of: Director of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Date: 20 September 2021   
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject: The Vision for a Modern Committee Governance System: Draft 
Design Principles and Engagement Approach   
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report: Alexander Polak, Assistant Director (Governance) 
______________________________________________________________ 
Summary:  
 
The purpose of this report is: 
 
1. To affirm the Council’s ambition for a range of positive outcomes from the 

forthcoming change of governance to a committee model (in the form of 
‘design principles’); 

2. To review and update the ‘governance principles’ and ‘how we do business 
(ways of working)’ at Appendix 1, which were endorsed by Full Council in 
2019, underpinning the Council’s five strategic ambitions for its future 
governance arrangements.  

3. To adopt these updated governance principles and ways of working as draft 
‘design principles’ in order to guide the design, and future review, of 
Sheffield’s modern committee governance model. These draft design 
principles will be subject to ongoing stakeholder engagement and review by 
the committee. 

4. To outline an emerging stakeholder engagement approach. The goal is to 
engage effectively and efficiently by aligning the scale, timing and character 
of the Council’s engagement activity with the schedule and character of the 
decisions this Committee needs to make between now and May 2022 about 
the Council’s future governance model and ways of working. While this 
schedule is not yet fully defined, enough is known to support the proposal to:  

a. convene interested parties in the short term to feed into the early 
design questions as they arise, and  

b. to commission a broader, city-wide exercise to take place in the 
new year, by which time citizens’ input could be most impactfully 
applied to the (by then) emerging model, and to shaping future 
ways of working within it. 

 
Governance 

Committee Report 

Page 15

Agenda Item 9



______________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendations: 
 

1. That the governance principles and ways of working at Appendix 1 are 
adopted as a working draft set of ‘design principles’ for the council’s future 
committee system, subject to any changes agreed by the Governance 
Committee today;  

2. That these design principles be used as the basis for immediate 
stakeholder engagement as per recommendation 5; 

3. That these design principles are kept under review throughout the planned 
cycles of stakeholder engagement and design up to and beyond May 
2022; 

4. That the immediate commencement of design work for the new committee 
governance model on the basis of these design principles is endorsed 
(noting that early design work may need to retrospectively take account of 
any future revisions to the design principles); 

5. That the immediate commencement of stakeholder engagement activity is 
endorsed as follows: 

a. Proportionate, topic-by-topic engagement with internal and external 
stakeholders on technical questions as they arise, starting 
immediately, including an open public invitation for participants to 
contribute via a stakeholder group made up of interested parties; 

b. A city-wide, facilitated, representative, discursive engagement 
exercise in the new year, by which time more citizens’ input could 
be more impactfully applied to the emerging model, and to shaping 
future ways of working within it. 

c. Continuous review of this approach, with further detail to return to 
this Committee in October for consideration. 

_____________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers:  N/A 
 

 
Category of Report: OPEN 
 

   

Page 16



Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 
 

Financial Implications 
 

NO - Cleared by: Kayleigh Inman 
 

Legal Implications 
 

NO - Cleared by: Sarah Bennett 
 

Equality of Opportunity Implications 

NO - Cleared by: James Henderson 
 

Tackling Health Inequalities Implications 
 

NO 
 

Human rights Implications 
 

NO: 
 

Environmental and Sustainability implications 
 

NO 
 

Economic impact 
 

NO 
 

Community safety implications 
 

NO 
 

Human resources implications 
 

NO 
 

Property implications 
 

NO 
 

Area(s) affected 
 

None 
 

Relevant Cabinet Portfolio Member 
 

Councillor Julie Grocutt, Deputy Leader and Executive Member for Community Engagement 
and Governance 

 

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?    

NO 
 

Press release 
 

NO 
 

 
 

Page 17



THE VISION FOR A MODERN COMMITTEE GOVERNANCE SYSTEM: DRAFT 
DESIGN PRINCIPLES AND ENGAGEMENT APPROACH 
 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 
  
1.1 The Governance Committee has been appointed by Sheffield City 

Council to lead the work which will take the Council from a ‘Leader 
and Cabinet’ model of Governance to a ‘Committee’ model. This is 
one of the first formal reports to the committee, and it aims to lay 
groundwork for the task ahead. 

  
2.0 BACKGROUND 
  
2.1 On 6th May 2021, a Sheffield City Council Governance Referendum 

was held to determine whether the Council should be run by a leader 
who is an elected councillor chosen by a vote of the other elected 
councillors (which is how it is run now), or alternatively, by one or 
more committees made up of elected councillors. One result of this 
referendum was a binding resolution by Sheffield City Council on 19 
May 2021 that it will, with effect from the start of the 2022/23 
Municipal Year, cease to operate executive arrangements and start to 
operate a committee system of governance. 

  
2.2 On 16 June 2021 Sheffield City Council resolved to establish a 

Governance Committee as a politically proportionate member steering 
group to guide the transition to a committee system of governance 
and to set the parameters for stakeholder engagement. Today’s 
meeting is the first substantive, formal, public meeting of this new 
Committee. 

  
2.3 Significant progress has been made since the 19 May resolution of 

Council, including: 
1. Commencement of the formal, legal steps required by 

legislation (as per section 3 of the 19 May report to Council); 
2. Implementation of major, immediate changes to the Council’s 

governance arrangements such as the creation of seven Local 
Area Committees and four temporary Transitional Committees 
(see briefing elsewhere on today’s Governance Committee 
agenda); 

3. Creation of a ‘Transition to Committees’ programme team and 
recruitment of new staff as necessary to support both the 
change programme and the above new governance 
arrangements; 

4. Securing the involvement of key outside bodies which will 
support the Council with aspects of this process, including the 
Centre for Governance and Scrutiny, the Local Government 
Association, and a strategic partner to support engagement 
activity in the new year (to be announced); and 

5. Commencement of a research, analysis and planning exercise 

Page 18

https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/documents/b23822/Sheffield%20City%20Council%20Governance%20Referendum%20Wednesday%2019-May-2021%2012.00%20Council.pdf?T=9
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/documents/b23822/Sheffield%20City%20Council%20Governance%20Referendum%20Wednesday%2019-May-2021%2012.00%20Council.pdf?T=9
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/documents/b24137/Transition%20to%20a%20Committee%20System%20Wednesday%2016-Jun-2021%2014.00%20Council.pdf?T=9
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/documents/b23822/Sheffield%20City%20Council%20Governance%20Referendum%20Wednesday%2019-May-2021%2012.00%20Council.pdf?T=9


to:  
a. catalogue the full range of issues on which the Members 

or officers of the Council will need to reach decisions in 
order to define and implement a new governance model;  

b. design a schedule of when the council should aim to 
take each of these decisions; 

c. gather the technical information necessary to inform 
these decisions including case studies of other relevant 
local authorities; and 

d. design the scale, timing and character of the public 
engagement which will inform these decisions. 

An update from the Transition to Committees programme team can be 
found elsewhere on today’s Governance Committee agenda, in the 
form of a presentation. 
 

2.4  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.5 

Three key parts of the governance change process will be:  
 

 to engage with and listen to a range of stakeholders about the 
change and about ways of working within the future 
governance model;  

 to design the governance structure and ways of working within 
that structure; and  

 to design and implement any necessary changes to the support 
the council gives to members, officers and the public in order to 
enable this new structure and ways of working to succeed.  

 
While a detailed project plan is not yet complete (see paragraph 2.3 
bullet point 5), what is clear is that we don’t have time between now 
and May 2022 to finish each of these steps in this order, in isolation 
from one another. We will have to run all three concurrently. As well 
as helping us hit our immovable May 2022 deadline, this ‘iterative’ 
approach should provide a good environment in which stakeholder 
engagement can meaningfully feed into design work, and vice versa. 
 

3.0 DESIGN PRINCIPLES 
  
3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Centre for Governance and Scrutiny has produced a range of 
materials designed to guide and support local authorities which 
embark on a change of governance model. Section 4 of their 
November 2020 report ‘Rethinking Council Governance for the 20s’ 
describes the importance of agreeing what they call ‘design principles’ 
early on in the process. Their advice is that: 
 

“These should not be vague, general aspirations such as making 
the council operate more democratically or enhancing 
transparency. They should be tangible aims that you can use for 
two purposes:  

 To reach a judgement on possible new governance models 
– seeing whether proposed structures and ways of working 
are likely to live up to your objectives;  

Page 19

https://www.cfgs.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/CfGS-Rethinking-council-governance-SINGLE-PAGES.pdf


 
 
 
3.2 

 To return to in future to help you to come to a judgment on 
whether your new systems are working or not.” 

 
The CfGS give examples to demonstrate the clarity they suggest is 
needed in the objectives, such as “involve councillors more in the 
development of key policies” or “seek to engage more fundamentally 
with local people and their needs.” 

  
3.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.4 

In 2019, as part of the process of developing referendum options, 
Sheffield City Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Committee – a cross party group of Councillors – was asked by Full 
Council to work with the Deputy Leader to look at what should be 
achieved through changing the Council’s decision-making model, and 
to come up with a set of principles that should underpin both of the 
options that would later be put to the referendum.  
 
The committee used a ‘select committee’ approach to this work, 
holding a series of evidence gathering sessions to hear from a range 
of witnesses. This included experts in local governance and decision 
making, local organisations with an interest in local democracy, 
partners from business and the Voluntary Community and Faith 
sector, Youth Cabinet and Youth Advisers. They also invited 
contributions from citizens through an online call for evidence and 
attendance at meetings, and undertook site visits and conversations 
with other local authorities to learn from their experiences of operating 
different governance models. A full list of witnesses, links to the 
evidence they considered and webcasts of their meetings can be 
found in that committee’s final report, ‘Principles for Governance at 
Sheffield City Council’. 
 

3.5 The ‘governance principles’ and ‘how we do business (ways of 
working)’ from the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee’s 
report, later endorsed by the entire Council on 8 January 2020, have 
been reproduced at Appendix 1.  
 

3.6 At that time, before the referendum, the principles and ways of 
working were designed to be applicable to either a Leader and 
Cabinet model of governance or a committee model of governance. 
Now that the future governance model is known, the committee needs 
to review these governance principles and ways of working and 
consider their applicability as ‘design principles’ for the change at 
hand. 
 

3.7 
 
 
 
 
3.8 
 

Members are therefore invited to consider what changes or additions 
would be needed to the detailed principles and ways of working in 
Appendix 1, before they can be agreed as a working draft set of 
design principles.  
 
They need not be perfect at this point. They will be used as the basis 
for stakeholder engagement over the coming weeks and months so 

Page 20

https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/documents/s37769/Principles%20for%20Governance%20at%20SCC.pdf
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/documents/s37769/Principles%20for%20Governance%20at%20SCC.pdf
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=20851


 
 
 
3.9 

members, officers, and other interested parties including the public will 
have more opportunities to influence them.  
 
The design principles will simultaneously be used to inform officers’ 
work on options for the future committee governance model, as this 
gets underway alongside the Council’s engagement programme. 
 

3.10 By way of a prompt, members are invited to consider the following 
potential changes to the principles at Appendix 1 (with reference to 
the numbers given to each principle and way of working in that 
appendix). 
 

3.10.1 Governance Principle 4: 
 
“Scrutiny should be strengthened in any future decision-
making structure – we must be held accountable for the 
decisions that we take, and embrace challenge to 
ensure we’re getting the best outcomes for Sheffield.“ 

 
One of the decisions which will need to be made in the new 
governance model is how to hold decision-makers to account 
within the system.  
 
In this context the word ‘scrutiny’ means more than its 
common-language definition – it is likely to be taken to refer to 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees. These were introduced to 
local government as part of the Leader and Cabinet model of 
governance, and when the Council moves to a modern 
committee model of governance most statutory requirements 
for a scrutiny function will fall away. There are a range of 
options for how this could be done effectively within a modern 
committee model. To avoid tying members’ hands before they 
have an opportunity to consider a full report on this matter, it 
would be advisable not to have a design principle which 
appears to presuppose any particular structural solution (such 
as a Scrutiny Committee).  
 
Therefore it is recommended that the word ‘scrutiny’ be 
removed from governance principle 4 when it is adopted as a 
‘design principle’, replacing it with the following: 
 

“Mechanisms for holding decision-makers and other 
parts of the wider partnership landscape to account 
should be strengthened in any future decision-making 
structure – we must be held accountable for the 
decisions that we take, and embrace challenge to 
ensure we’re getting the best outcomes for Sheffield.” 

 
3.10.2 Governance principle 7: 

 

Page 21



“Our decision-making structure should be underpinned 
by effective ways of working with local communities, 
informed by the Big City Conversation.” 

 
The intention behind this governance principle remains crucial, 
however the context has changed a little. Since this principle 
was drafted and agreed, the Council has moved forward with 
the creation of a network of seven Local Area Committees. 
These are designed to address some of the key findings from 
the Big City Conversation, amongst other things. The principle 
would be better if it reflected the latest situation. 
 
Therefore it is recommended that governance principle 7 is 
edited as follows when it is adopted as a ‘design principle’: 
 

“Our decision-making structure should be underpinned 
by effective ways of working with local communities, 
including through development of the role and use of 
Local Area Committees, informed by the Big City 
Conversation and other, ongoing engagement with 
Sheffielders.” 

 
4.0 STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 

 
4.1 Members have been clear that the development of and transition to a 

committee system in Sheffield will be fundamentally based on the 
views and ambitions of Sheffielders.  
 

4.2 In all the Council’s work to develop a committee system for Sheffield, 
it is committed to working in the open and creating meaningful 
opportunities at every stage for citizens, partners, interest groups and 
VCF organisations to get involved and shape the new decision-
making model.  Further, the move to a committee system has 
implications for Members and for SCC employees and we will ensure 
they are fully engaged in development of the new model.  
 

4.3 We know that we do not have all the answers about the governance 
model that will need to be in place by May 2022. The development of 
that model and the ways of working, cultures, and behaviours within it 
will be strengthened by ensuring there is a strong and active role for 
citizens from every part of the city. Specifically, our approach will aim 
to ensure that: 
 

 Citizens, VCF organisations and interest groups have an active 
role in the development of our new governance; 

 The development of our governance is inclusive, with 
involvement from all communities and Sheffielders with 
protected characteristics; 

 Our new governance model is designed to maximise citizen 
involvement and empowerment, enabling Sheffielders to shape 

Page 22



the decisions that matter to them; 

 Through the engagement activity, we build a better 
understanding of how citizens want to get involved in decision 
making at city and local level, informing the development of the 
new committee model and the Local Area Committees; and 

 We will build an understanding of where community capacity 
exists and where we need to support the development of that 
capacity to better enable people in Sheffield to have their 
democratic voice heard 

 
4.4 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5 

1. Recognising the scale of the changes that we need to make and the 

complexity of the issues, we want to make it simple for people to 

engage and ensure that any engagement has a clear purpose so that 

Sheffielders can see where their time and influence is shaping the 

development of the new governance. 

2. There are two key parts to our proposed approach: 

a. Specific elements of the new committee system – as 

mentioned above, there are a lot of big and small decisions 

and questions we need to answer about how the new 

committee system will operate in Sheffield. This will include, 

for example, the principles and ambitions driving Sheffield’s 

committee system, the structure of its committees, the 

names of its committees and how often they meet, technical 

alterations to the Council’s constitution and changes to who 

can make decisions and how.  We will create proportionate 

and meaningful opportunities for everyone to have a voice 

and engage in these proposals as they develop. 

b. Becoming an empowering and engaging council – as 

the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee found 

in their review of governance in December 2019, there are 

strengths and weaknesses to all governance models but it 

is “it is how we operate within those structures that will 

ultimately determine how successful they are”. In line with 

our One Year Plan, we want to fundamentally change our 

relationship with citizens, creating deeper connections with 

our communities, working alongside and involving people in 

decision making. As part of the transition to committees, we 

will use innovative and deliberative engagement techniques 

to work with citizens and stakeholders to better understand 

how people from all backgrounds and communities want to 

influence and shape decisions in the city. This is intended to 

shape the ways of working and cultures that underpin 

decision making in Sheffield. 

4.6 
 
 

3. To support the engagement programme, we propose to create an 

open network for anyone who wants to engage in the development of 

Page 23

https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/documents/s37769/Principles%20for%20Governance%20at%20SCC.pdf


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.7 
 
 
 
4.8 

the various aspects of the committee system, providing views on 

specific elements, getting involved in meetings, and events. Everyone 

will be able to participate in the conversations and we will work with 

established community networks and VCF organisations to ensure 

people from all communities have a voice and can engage in a way 

which works for them.  

4. The Council has benefitted from talking on this topic with a number of, 

interested local individuals and groups both before and since the 

referendum and it is hoped that this can continue as part of the above.  

5. There is also a related opportunity to ensure that we are learning from 

the best technical advice available. Not just from the expert bodies 

already enjoined by the Council but also by exploring the issue with 

VCF partners, universities and other centres of expertise in Sheffield 

City Council’s wider network. 

4.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.10 

6. The transition to a committee system is one significant part of the 

transformation of governance, accountability, local democracy and 

community empowerment in Sheffield.  Alongside the committee 

system, we have also established a network of Local Area 

Committees (LACs) which will put local areas at the heart of decision-

making.   

7. Over the coming months, communities across Sheffield will have an 

unprecedented opportunity to create plans to improve their local area. 

As a starting point, we have launched an online survey to tell us their 

views on their local area https://sheffield.citizenspace.com/chief-

executives/lac-community-survey/.  The views and perspectives of 

Sheffielders from these LAC conversations will also help inform the 

transition to the committee system.  

  
5.0 LEGAL, FINANCIAL AND EQUALITY OF OPPORTUNITY 

IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 
 
5.2 
 
 
 
5.3 
 

 
There are no immediate legal implications to this report.  
 
The cost of engagement and consultation will be contained within the 
overall programme forecast spend of £1.3m – outlined in the Cabinet 
Paper 21.7.21. 
 
There are no immediate equalities implications to this report. 
Equalities will be a key consideration in the design and 
implementation of the engagement programme, the detail of which will 
return to the October meeting of this committee for agreement. As per 
section 4.3 above, the Council is committed to ensuring that the 
development of our governance is inclusive, with involvement from all 
communities and Sheffielders with protected characteristics, and 
these views will feed directly into the design of the new governance 
model. An Equality Impact Assessment is underway and will be kept 

Page 24

https://sheffield.citizenspace.com/chief-executives/lac-community-survey/
https://sheffield.citizenspace.com/chief-executives/lac-community-survey/


under review as part of the engagement work.  
 

6.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
 1. That the governance principles and ways of working at 

Appendix 1 are adopted as a working draft set of ‘design 
principles’ for the council’s future committee system, subject to 
any changes agreed by the Governance Committee today;  

 
2. That these design principles be used as the basis for 

immediate stakeholder engagement as per recommendation 5; 
 

3. That these design principles are kept under review throughout 
the planned cycles of stakeholder engagement and design up 
to and beyond May 2022; 

 
4. That the immediate commencement of design work for the new 

committee governance model on the basis of these design 
principles is endorsed (noting that early design work may need 
to retrospectively take account of any future revisions to the 
design principles); 
 

5. That the immediate commencement of stakeholder 
engagement activity is endorsed along the following lines: 
 

a. Topic-by-topic engagement with internal and external 
stakeholders on technical questions as they arise for the 
Committee’s consideration, including via an open public 
invitation for participants to contribute via a stakeholder 
group made up of interested parties; 

b. A city-wide, facilitated, representative, discursive 
engagement exercise in the new calendar year, by 
which time more citizens’ input could be more 
impactfully applied to the emerging model, and to 
shaping future ways of working within it. 

c. Continuous review of this approach, with further detail to 
return to this Committee in October for consideration. 

 
7.0 APPENDICES 
  

Appendix 1 – Extract from ‘Principles for Governance and Scrutiny at 
Sheffield City Council’ 

 
 
Gillian Duckworth  
Director of Legal & Governance (and Monitoring Officer) 

Page 25



Appendix 1 
 
Extract from 
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/documents/s37769/Principles%20for%20Gov
ernance%20at%20SCC.pdf 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
For convenient reference, text from the above table is reproduced below. The 
‘governance principles’ and ‘how we do business’ (ways of working) are 
numbered: 
 
Critical ambitions 
 

 Sheffield City Council is a trusted organisation where decisions are taken 
in an open and transparent way, and accountability is clear  

 Sheffield City Council is a council where all councillors are involved in and 
able to influence decision making  

 Sheffield City Council engages, involves and listens to citizens, 
communities and partners  

 Sheffield City Council has a modern and responsive approach to 
governance which reflects the increasingly complex policy making 
environment  

 Sheffield City Council is a reflective council that is committed to 
continuously improving governance 
 

Governance Principles  

Page 26

https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/documents/s37769/Principles%20for%20Governance%20at%20SCC.pdf
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/documents/s37769/Principles%20for%20Governance%20at%20SCC.pdf


 
1. A commitment to openness and transparency must run through our decision-

making structure.  

2. Comprehensive forward planning of decisions – being clear about what 
decisions we are planning to take, when they will be taken, who will be taking 
them.  

3. Clear reports from officers that set out the relevant information in an 
accessible way, and are clear about the reasons for a decision being made.  

4. Scrutiny should be strengthened in any future decision-making structure – we 
must be held accountable for the decisions that we take, and embrace 
challenge to ensure we’re getting the best outcomes for Sheffield.  

5. Our governance should be underpinned by a commitment to the highest 
ethical standards as set out in the Nolan Standards on Public Life. 

6. Our decision-making structure should be designed in a way that creates 
channels for all 84 Councillors to be involved in, and influence decision 
making.  

7. Our decision-making structure should be underpinned by effective ways of 
working with local communities, informed by the Big City Conversation.  

8. We are a member-led authority, where accountability lies with elected 
councillors. Our decision-making structure must reflect this, and not 
inappropriately increase delegations to officers.  

9. Our decision-making structure needs to reflect the practical demands on 
councillors’ time. Need to find a balance between time spent in formal 
decision-making meetings in the Town Hall against working with and in 
communities. Time demands shouldn’t prohibit people with working/caring 
commitments from being a Councillor. 

10. The issues people care about are often local in nature. Our decision-making 
structure needs to include channels through which people, communities and 
partners can work with local councillors about what is important to them. We 
need to strengthen locality arrangements based on the findings of the Big City 
Conversation and ensure that these arrangements work effectively alongside, 
and feed into, citywide decision-making processes. 

11. Our decision-making structure must avoid silo working both within and 
outside of the City Council, and enable a joined up approach to tackling 
issues which need the involvement of a number of organisations in the city  

12. Our decision-making structure needs to have a mechanism for making urgent 
decisions openly, transparently and effectively engaging elected councillors.  

13. Our decision-making structure needs to strengthen our ability to work with our 
partners in a complex local, sub-regional and national policy environment, 
and enable us to take a lead on key issues facing the city and the citizens of 
Sheffield. 

14. We need to be clear about what we are trying to achieve through our 
governance arrangements, and build in measures to assess whether it is 
working  

Page 27



15. We need to identify a forum that enables us to reflect, on an ongoing basis, 
on whether our governance systems are working as anticipated, and if 
changes need to be made. 

 

How we do Business (Ways of Working)  

 

16. We need to take a more creative approach to communicating about how 
decision making in the Council works – in terms of how decisions are made, 
what those decisions are, and what they mean for the city. 

17. Role of Full Council – should be reviewed in the light of changes following the 
referendum – consider how we could make it a more meaningful forum.  

18. Ensure that the appropriate support, training and skills development is 
continuously available for councillors so they can take full advantage of the 
opportunities under the new structure. 

19. We must ensure that a commitment to meaningful engagement, involvement 
and consultation runs through the organisation. We should renew a 
commitment to our Consultation Principles, and reflect on how the council’s 
Engagement Standards which are currently in development can improve 
practice throughout our work.  

20. We need to constantly demonstrate how engagement activity is shaping 
decision making, and be honest about the impact it is having, so communities 
and partners can understand how their views have been responded to.  

21. We need to make it as easy as possible for people to engage with us – the 
starting point for this should to be clear, consistent, accessible 
communication about what the Council is doing, what decisions we are 
planning to take and how to get involved. 

22. We need to improve the information we provide about how decision making 
happens across the City as a whole and how partnerships and structures 
interconnect. 

23. We need to establish a process of continuous engagement so that Members, 
partners and citizens can give a view on how the system is working. 

 

Page 28



 

 

 
 

 
Report of:   Director of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:    20th September 2021 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject:   Transitional Committees Briefing 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report:  Alexander Polak, Assistant Director of Governance  
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
 
A briefing is provided about the intended role of the Transitional Committees and 
how they fit within the Council’s governance arrangements. 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendations:  
 
That the Transitional Committees Briefing be noted and commended to the 
attention of all Members. 
_____________________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers:  None 
 

 
Category of Report: OPEN 
 
 

 
 
   

 
Governance 

 Committee Report 

 

Page 29

Agenda Item 10



 

 

Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 
 

Financial Implications 
 

NO Cleared by: Kayleigh Inman 
 

Legal Implications 
 

NO Cleared by: Sarah Bennett 
 

Equality of Opportunity Implications 

NO Cleared by: James Henderson 
 

Tackling Health Inequalities Implications 
 

NO 
 

Human rights Implications 
 

NO: 
 

Environmental and Sustainability implications 
 

NO 
 

Economic impact 
 

NO 
 

Community safety implications 
 

NO 
 

Human resources implications 
 

NO 
 

Property implications 
 

NO 
 

Area(s) affected 
 

NONE 
 

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?    

NO 
 

Press release 
 

NO 
 

Page 30



 

 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF 
LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE 

Governance Committee 
20th September 2021 

  
  
 
 
1. Purpose of Report 
  
1.1 
 

To note the attached briefing about the role of the Council’s new Transitional 
Committees. 

  
2. BACKGROUND  
  
2.1 
 
 
 
 
2.2 

On 19 May 2021 Sheffield City Council resolved to establish four Transitional 
Committees on a politically proportionate basis and including representation from 
Executive Members, to undertake policy development work to support the activities of 
the Co-operative Executive. 
 
On 16 June 2021 Sheffield City Council resolved to note the proposals for the 
operation of Transitional Committees as set out in the above linked report and 
approved their establishment in respect of the four theme areas (which each relate to 
a number of Executive member portfolios) as follows:  
 
Transition Committee 1: Our Council  

 Leader  

 Deputy Leader - Community Engagement and Governance  

 Finance and Resources  
 

Transition Committee 2: Communities and Neighbourhoods  

 Sustainable Neighbourhoods, Wellbeing, Parks and Leisure 

 Housing, Roads and Waste Management  
 

Transition Committee 3: Climate Change, Economy and Development  

 Climate Change, Environment and Transport 

 Inclusive Economy, Jobs and Skills  
 

 City Futures: Development, Culture and Regeneration  
Transition Committee 4: Education, Health and Care  

 Education, Children and Families  

 Health and Social Care 
 

2.3 The following is an extract from the report to Council on 16 June 2021: 
 

“The purpose of Transitional Committees is to help the Council begin to work 
within a system where all parties’ views are taken into consideration when 
making decisions or setting policy for the Council. The Committees will 
undertake policy development work to support the activities of the Cooperative 
Executive and provide cross-party engagement prior to decision making so that 
a broad view and range of ideas can be considered.  
 
 

Page 31

https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=23062
https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/documents/b24137/Transition%20to%20a%20Committee%20System%20Wednesday%2016-Jun-2021%2014.00%20Council.pdf?T=9


 

 

 “The Committees will be outward facing. They may implement mechanisms to 
encourage and enhance community participation in the development of policy 
options; conduct research, community and other consultation in the analysis of 
policy and possible options for the purpose of advising the Executive on the 
delivery of corporate priorities; and liaise with other organisations operating in 
the area to ensure that policy recommendations are thus enhanced to reflect 
the interests of local people.  
 
“They will also provide a link between Local Area Committees (LACs) and the 
Co-operative Executive, receiving and reviewing reports and recommendations 
on matters that do not fall within the delegated powers of the LAC and 
considering the outcome of consultation carried out by LACs on matters under 
consideration by the Transitional Committee.  
 
“Although Transitional Committees will not formally meet until September, 
preparatory work for their operation will be undertaken before then. The 
intention is to set a work programme for each Committee and work will begin 
shortly with the Chairs and Vice Chairs of the committees to agree how this 
should be done.” 

 
2.4 
 
 
2.5 

The appended briefing was initially prepared for the Chairs and Vice Chairs of the 
Transitional Committees in order to support them in their new roles.  
 
Although this was intended to be an inward-facing document, it was considered that 
this might be of use and interest to all Councillors and other interested persons 
including members of the public.  
 

3.0 APPENDICES 
 
3.1 

 
Appendix 1 – Transitional Committees Briefing 
 

4. Recommendation: 
  
4.1 That the Transitional Committees Briefing at Appendix 1 be noted and commended to 

the attention of all Members. 
  
  
 Gillian Duckworth 
 Director of Legal and Governance 

 

Page 32



Appendix 1 

Page 1 of 3 
 

Transitional Committees Briefing 
 

What are Transitional Committees (and what are they not)? 

 

Transitional Committees (TCs) are being introduced to provide an early opportunity for Members to 

work on a cross-party basis in advance of decisions being made. This is the way decisions will be 

taken once Sheffield’s Committee system is introduced (May 2022).  

 

The TCs are somewhat different to the committees within a Committee system as they are purely 

advisory, not decision-making. This is not an organisational choice, it’s the way the law works. 

Whilst we are operating within a Strong Leader model of governance, decisions can only be taken 

by the Executive Members and they can total no more than 10.   

 

Transitional Committees are 

 advisory 

 temporary 

 not a shadow committee 

 a space to improve how cross-party engagement works in decision-making 

 a conduit for consideration of local issues arising via Local Area Committees (LACs) 

 a space to pilot new ways of working 
 
Some councils going through this transition convene their future decision-making committees 

ahead of the formal change of governance but call them ‘shadow’ committees. They typically 

continue their work with similar membership once the new arrangements come into place. 

Sheffield’s TCs are not shadow committees. They serve a particular and temporary purpose, as 

above (from September 2021 to May 2022). 

 
 
New ways of working 
 

The TCs can decide how they will work together, and how they work with partners and 

communities. They may therefore end up working in quite different ways to each other. 

Testing or piloting new ways of working will have to be fast and focused. Each TC only has time to 

meet about half a dozen times before they are disbanded. 

 

Some of the sorts of ideas which could be tested include 

 Co-opting non-councillors onto committees 

 Applying best practice for policy development from Scrutiny practitioners eg single-day 

multi-stakeholder workshops, Task and Finish groups, commissioning research, site visits, 

public calls for evidence. 

 Deliberative participation techniques e.g. short-term or long-term advisory groups of 

stakeholders, or citizens assemblies. 

 

These ways of working will provide valuable evidence and feedback, particularly regarding ways of 

working, to help the Governance Committee decide on the final model.  Recommendations will be 

made to Full Council prior to the transition to the Committee system of governance in May 2022. 

 

The Scrutiny team have been working with the Executive Members and the chairs and deputy 

chairs of the TCs to finalise their work plans (based on the Council’s One Year Plan).  This has 

been happening in advance of the first public meetings, taking place towards the end of 

September. 

 

Page 33



Appendix 1 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Transitional Committees and the public  

 

TCs provide an opportunity to demonstrate to the people and communities of Sheffield that we are 

committed to trialling new ways of working to inform the design of the new Committee model.  

They will be of particular interest to our informed and engaged stakeholders who will be keen to 

see how they work in practice, what opportunities they create for public involvement and how the 

learning will inform the next steps.  

 

A commitment to openness and transparency will therefore be vitally important, particularly in how 

the TCs work will with the Co-operative Members individually and collectively.  

 

 

Transitional Committees and the Co-operative Executive 

 

The relationship between TCs and individual members of the Co-operative Executive will be key. 

As the TCs are advisory, they should operate hand-in-hand with the Co-operative Executive and 

expect them to be present at most meetings.  

 

In order to add value to real decisions, the TCs work plans will need to be largely aligned with the 

Co-operative Executive’s forward plan, along with items arising from LACs for example (see 

below). However TCs remain autonomous and can decide how to prioritise their time between 

these various issues and how to approach each one. 

 

 

Transitional Committees and Local Area Committees 

 

The new LACs are decision-making committees, where each Elected Member of a LAC has a say 

in the decisions it makes. Powers have been devolved to the LACs, and officers assigned to 

support them, to ensure that they can begin to operate with some autonomy from September 2021.  

 

The LACs will have a relationship with the TCs as they can refer matters that they consider to be 

more of a city-wide issue to the relevant TC. As the TCs are advisory, they will not be able to take 

a decision on the issue, but they may decide to commission work to consider whether this is a city-

wide issue or if they receive enough referrals they may just move directly to advising the Co-

operative Executive of the issue arising. 

 

 

Transitional Committees and Scrutiny Committees 

 

Scrutiny is a required part of the executive model of governance and therefore Scrutiny 

Committees will continue during this year.  However, there will only be three Scrutiny Committees 

this year as opposed to the five that we have had in previous years.  

 

These will be focused on scrutinising the performance and delivery of council services and 

undertaking statutory responsibilities on topics such as health service changes and community 

safety.  They will not generally undertake policy development activity as they would have in 

previous years – this space is expected to be occupied by the TCs. To use the relevant jargon: 

Scrutiny committees will undertake ‘scrutiny’ or ‘post-decision’ work but TCs will primarily cover the 

‘overview’ or ‘pre-decision’ work. 

 

Page 34



Appendix 1 

Page 3 of 3 
 

Scrutiny is not a required part of the future Committee system, but it can be included.  The 

Governance Committee will make recommendations to Full Council about whether or how scrutiny 

and call-in functions should be part of our new Committee system. 

 

It is likely that TCs will find themselves wanting to do work which feels like scrutiny activity. In order 

for TCs to stay focused, this type of thing should probably be referred to the relevant Scrutiny 

Committee.  This ought to be considered on a case-by-case basis in case there is value in piloting 

the work in a different setting. 

 

Each of the Scrutiny Committees will also continue to have the ability to call-in decisions made by 

the Co-operative Executive, Individual Executive Members or LACs 

 
 
Senior officers and Transitional Committees  
 
It is expected that there will be a formalised and strong relationship between specific senior officers 
and each TC. Work is underway to define which senior officer or officers should be the lead 
contacts for each TC and on what basis to align them with TCs.  
 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	7 Governance Committee Terms of Reference
	9 Design Principles
	10 Transitional Committees Briefing
	10. Appendix 1 - Transitional Committees Briefing V.1.2


